
 
 

MEMBERS: 

James Bailey, Chairman                                       Dane Grey, Board Member 

Craig Gibbs, Esq. Vice Chairman                                      Todd Froats, Board Member  

Ron Moody, Secretary                                      Marc Padgett, Board Member 

Oliver Barakat, Board Member                                      Braxton Gillam, Esq. Board Member  

Carol Worsham, Board Member                                          
                

 

DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

AGENDA 

 

City Hall at St. James Building  

117 W. Duval Street, 1st Floor, Lynwood Roberts Room 

Jacksonville, Florida  32202  

Wednesday, August 21, 2019 – 2:00 P.M. 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 A. Pledge of Allegiance 

  

II.  PUBLIC COMMENTS  

  

III. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING 

 A. August 7, 2019 CRA Board Meeting Minutes 

 B. Resolution 2019-08-10: Southside FY 2019 Budget Amendment 

 C. Resolution 2019-08-11: Northbank FY 2019 Budget Amendment 

  

IV.  DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY BOARD 

 A. August 7, 2019 DIA Board Meeting Minutes 

 B. Resolution 2019-08-12: Lofts at Cathedral Allocation of Development Rights 

 C. Resolution 2019-08-13: JEA Headquarters Allocation of Development Rights 

 D. Resolution 2019-08-14: Live Bakery Retail Enhancement Grant 

  

V. PRESENTATION 

 A. M.O.C.A. 

  

VI.  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT  

  

VII CHAIRMAN REPORT 

  

VIII. DDRB BRIEFING  

  

IX. OLD BUSINESS  

  

X. NEW BUSINESS  

 A. Unsolicited Offers To Purchase DIA Policy 

 B. Blackwater Capital, LLC: Unsolicited Offer to Purchase: LaVilla Property  

  

XI. ADJOURN 

*Transcript of the meeting available upon request or may be found at http://dia.coj.net/about/Meeting-

Information/Meeting-Minutes 

http://dia.coj.net/about/Meeting-Information/Meeting-Minutes
http://dia.coj.net/about/Meeting-Information/Meeting-Minutes


 

 
 

Downtown Investment Authority 
City Hall at St. James Building,  

117 W. Duval Street, First Floor, Lynwood Roberts Room    
Jacksonville, FL. 32202  

Wednesday, August 21, 2019 –2:00 p.m.  
 

  
 

Community Redevelopment Agency 
  MEETING MINUTES 
 
Board Members Present:   Craig Gibbs, Esq., Vice Chairman; Ron Moody, Secretary;  
Todd Froats; Dane Grey; Marc Padgett and Carol Worsham 
 
Board Members Absent:  Jim Bailey, Chairman; Oliver Barakat and Braxton Gillam  
 
Mayor’s Staff:   Dr. Johnny Gaffney, Mayor’s Office, Boards and Commission Liaison  
 
Council Members:   Michael Boylan, Council Member DIA Liaison District 6; and Reggie 
Gaffney, Council Member District 7.  
 
DIA Staff:  Lori Boyer, Chief Executive Officer; Guy Parola, Operations Manager; and Karen 
Underwood-Eiland, Executive Assistant. 
 
Office of General Counsel: John Sawyer, Office of General Counsel   
 
I. CALL TO ORDER  

 
Vice Chairman Gibbs called the CRA Meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. and the attendees introduced 
themselves for the record.    
 
A. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Trip Stanly, Blackwater Capital provided a photo of a map of Vestcor’s townhomes, City-
controlled parcels and JTA- controlled parcels.  He commented about the LaVilla neighborhood 
development strategy and pointed out to keep the momentum going.  
 
III. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING   
 
A. Approval of the August 7, 2019 Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes  

 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER GREY AND SECONDED BY 
BOARD MEMBER PADGETT APPROVING THE AUGUST 7, 2019 COMMUNITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING MINUTES. 

 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 6-0-0. 
 
 



Downtown Investment Authority 
Regular Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, August 21, 2019 
Page 2 of 3  

B. RESOLUTION 2018-08-10: SOUTHSIDE FY 2019 BUDGET AMENDMENT   
 

RESOLUTION 2019 -08-10 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
ACTING AS THE SOUTHSIDE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY BOARD AMENDING THE ALL YEARS TAX INCREMENT 
DISTRICT (“TID”) BUDGET FOR THE SOUTHSIDE CRA PURSUANT TO 
SEC. 163.387, F.S. AND SEC. 106.341, ORDINANCE CODE FOR VARIOUS 
PLAN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO RE-ALLOCATE SAID FUNDS 
PRIOR TO YEAR END; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

CEO Boyer brought forward Resolution 2019-08-10. The only amendment is the allocation 
between the existing balance was, traffic flow, signage and consulting services for the DRI.    
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER WORSHAM AND SECONDED BY 
BOARD MEMBER PADGETT APPROVING RESOLUTION 2019-08-10. 
 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 6-0-0. 
 
C. RESOLUTION 2019-08-11:  NORTHBANK FY 2019 BUDGET AMENDMENT - 

DEFERRED  
RESOLUTION 2019 -08-11 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
ACTING AS THE DOWNTOWN NORTHBANK COMBINED COMMUNITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD AMENDING THE ALL YEARS 
TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT (“TID”) BUDGET FOR THE DOWNTOWN 
NORTHBANK COMBINED PURSUANT TO SEC. 163.387, F.S. AND SEC. 
106.341, ORDINANCE CODE FOR VARIOUS PLAN AUTHORIZED 
EXPENDITURES TO RE-ALLOCATE SAID FUNDS PRIOR TO YEAR 
END; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Resolution 2019-08-11 was deferred.  
 
IV. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY BOARD   
 
Occurred post-closing of Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting.  
  
V. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 
 
Occurred post-closing of Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting.  
 
VI. CHAIRMAN REPORT  
 
Occurred post-closing of Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting.  



Downtown Investment Authority 
Regular Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, August 21, 2019 
Page 3 of 3  

VII. DDRB BRIEFING 
 

Occurred post-closing of Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting.  
 
VIII. OLD BUSINESS 
 
Occurred post-closing of Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting.  
IX. NEW BUSINESS  
 
Occurred post-closing of Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting.  
 
X. ADJOURN 

 
There being no further business, Vice Chairman Gibbs adjourned the CRA meeting at 
approximately 2:10 p.m.  
 

The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed.  For verbatim 
comments of this meeting, a transcript is available upon request.  Please contact Karen 

Underwood-Eiland, at (904) 255-5302, 
 
 



RESOLUTION 2019 -08-10 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ACTING 

AS THE SOUTHSIDE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD 

AMENDING THE ALL YEARS TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT (“TID”) 

BUDGET FOR THE SOUTHSIDE CRA PURSUANT TO SEC. 163.387, F.S. AND 

SEC. 106.341, ORDINANCE CODE FOR VARIOUS PLAN PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES TO RE-ALLOCATE SAID FUNDS PRIOR TO YEAR END; 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Sec. 106.340-106.346, Ordinance Code, the Board has been 

given authority to allocate and transfer funds within the CRA budget in accordance with the provisions 

of those sections, without further Council approval; and 
 

WHEREAS, the DIA wishes to re-allocate certain Plan Professional Service Budgets from prior 

years; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority: 
 

 Section 1. The DIA hereby adopts the following budgetary re-allocation of the all years budgets 

of specific Plan Professional Services as reflected on the attached Exhibit 1. 
  

Reduce budget for Traffic Flow, Signage and Roadway Design from $311,700 to $0 

 Increase budget for Consulting Services for DRI from $77,500 to $100,000 

Create budget for Market Feasibility Study of $30,000 

Create Budget for BID and CRA Plan Update of $75,000 

Transfer $150,000 of budget to JEA SSGS (The District) to increase the balance available for 

construction 

Increase the budget for Retail Enhancement from $166,462 (balance after 18/19 budget 

amendment) by $34,200 for a total budget available of $200,662 
 

Section 2. Pursuant to Sec. 106.344, Ordinance Code, the staff of DIA is hereby directed to 

prepare and file a CRA Budget Transfer Form effectuating the aforementioned budget amendments. 
 

Section 3. Requesting a carryforward of any unspent amounts into Fiscal Year 2019-2020.  
 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair of the 

DIA Board. 

 

WITNESS:              DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 
 

______________________          

Jim Bailey, Chairman                  Date 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ____ Opposed:  ____ Abstained: _____ 



All Years Budget 

Amendment 

Southside CRA          

(SF 182)

Revised all years balance as of 

8/11/2019; budget actions 

Adopted 8/07/2019 by committee

South Side TID (SF 182) All years balance

Amended 

Budget

Plan Professional Services

Traffic Flow, Signange and Roadway $311,700

Consulting Services for DRI $77,500 $100,000

Market Feasibility $30,000

BID and CRA Plan Update $75,000

Financial Obligation

JEA SSGS $150,000

Plan Programs

Retail Enhancement $34,200

$389,200 $389,200

gparola
Typewritten Text
RESOLUTION 2019-08-10EXHIBIT 1



RESOLUTION 2019 -08-11 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ACTING 

AS THE DOWNTOWN NORTHBANK COMBINED COMMUNITY 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD AMENDING THE ALL YEARS TAX 

INCREMENT DISTRICT (“TID”) BUDGET FOR THE DOWNTOWN 

NORTHBANK COMBINED PURSUANT TO SEC. 163.387, F.S. AND SEC. 

106.341, ORDINANCE CODE FOR VARIOUS PLAN AUTHORIZED 

EXPENDITURES TO RE-ALLOCATE SAID FUNDS PRIOR TO YEAR END; 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Sec. 106.204(c), Ordinance Code, the DIA was required to 

deliver to the Council Secretary, the Council Auditor and the Mayor a schedule reflecting the all years 

balances in all Plan Programs, Plan Capital Projects, Plan Professional Services, debt service reserves 

and other accounts carried over from proper years; and 

 

WHEREAS, such schedule revealed a number of journal entries and budget actions that were 

necessary in order to reconcile said report and such actions have been agreed to by the Council Auditors; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Sec. 106.340-106.346, Ordinance Code, the Board has been 

given authority to allocate and transfer funds within the CRA budget in accordance with the provisions 

of those sections, without further Council approval; and 
 

WHEREAS, the DIA wishes to re-allocate certain Plan Authorized Expenditure Budgets from 

prior years; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority: 
 

 Section 1. The DIA hereby adopts the budgetary re-allocation of the all years budgets of specific 

Plan Authorized Expenditures reflected on the attached Exhibit 1. 
  

Section 2. Pursuant to Sec. 106.344, Ordinance Code, the staff of DIA is hereby directed to 

prepare and file a CRA Budget Transfer Form effectuating the aforementioned budget amendments. 
 

Section 3. Requesting a carryforward of any unspent amounts into Fiscal Year 2019-2020.  
 

Section 4.  This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair of the 

DIA Board. 

 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION 2019-08-11 

PAGE 2 OF 2 

 

WITNESS:              DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

______________________          

Jim Bailey, Chairman                  Date 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ____ Opposed:  ____ Abstained: _____ 



All Years Budget Amendment Combined 
Northbank Downtown CRAs (SF 181 and 183, 
now 18A and 18C)

Index Code
Project 
number

All years remaining 
budgetary balances as of 

June 30, 2019
Amended Budget Addition or 

Reduction
Notes

Plan Authorized Expenditures

Plan  Programs

Loans JXSF181 09995 1,078,999.00$                       791,069.05$                   

reflects transfer in of 40,723 from Professional Services in 
15/16  that occurred in accounting system but apparently 
not in budget; also transfer out for Bryan and JU specific 
projects funded from this source

Bryan Building forgivable loan 55,000.00$                     
Jacksonville Univ. forgivable loan JXSF 181 274,000.00$                   

Downtown WiFi JXSF181 142,873.67$                   

ETR Carling JXSF 181 09101 44,136.28$                     

Banner Project I JXSF 181 04939 22,920.00$                     

Plan Professional Services

Plan Professional Services JXSF181 03109 50,000 9,196.00$                       

reflects transfer of 40,723 of budget to Loans in 15/16  that 
occurred in accounting system but apparently not in 
budget

Unallocated Plan Authorized Expenditures

Kraft Heinz REV grant JXSF181 04939 190,000.00$                          -$                                 

This was a financial obligation but due to default in job 
creation, the unused budget will not be required; if the 
agreement is modified new legislation will be required and 
new budget authorized for future year; per 106.342 (4) this 
balance falls to unallocated plan expenditures category

Miscellaneous NonDepartmental Expenditures 
(Unallocated Plan Authorized Expenditures) JXSF181 04939 20,196.00$                            -$                                 20,196 used for Banner project I 

TOTAL 1,339,195.00$                       1,339,195.00$                



 

 
 

Downtown Investment Authority 
City Hall at St. James Building,  

117 W. Duval Street, First Floor, Lynwood Roberts Room    
Jacksonville, FL. 32202  

Wednesday, August 21, 2019 – 2:10 p.m.  
 

  
Downtown Investment Authority   

  MEETING MINUTES  
 
Board Members Present:   Craig Gibbs, Esq., Vice Chairman; Ron Moody, Secretary; Todd 
Froats; Dane Grey; and Marc Padgett; Carol Worsham   
 
Board Members Absent:  Jim Bailey, Chairman; Oliver Barakat; and Braxton Gillam, Esq. 
 
Mayor’s Staff:   Dr. Johnny Gaffney, Mayor’s Office, Boards and Commission Liaison   
 
Council Members:  Michael Boylan, Council Member District 6, DIA Liaison and Reggie 
Gaffney, Council Member, District 7. 
 
DIA Staff:  Lori Boyer, Chief Executive Officer; Guy Parola, Operations Manager; and Karen 
Underwood-Eiland, Executive Assistant. 
 
Office of General Counsel: John Sawyer, Chief, Governmental Operations Department. Office of 
General Counsel    
 
Meeting Convened: 2:10 p.m.  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Vice Chairman Craig Gibbs called the DIA meeting to order at 2:10 p.m.  
 
II. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
A.  Approval of the August 7, 2019 Downtown Investment Authority Meeting Minutes  
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER GREY AND SECONDED BY BOARD 
MEMBER PADGETT APPROVING THE AUGUST 7, 2019 DIA REGULAR  
MEETING MINUTES.  
 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 6-0-0.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Downtown Investment Authority 
Regular Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, August 21, 2019  
Page 2 of 6  

B. RESOLUTION 2019-08-12: LOFTS AT CATHEDRAL ALLOCATION OF 
DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-08-12 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) 
ALLOCATING UP TO 140 UNITS OF MULTI-FAMILY ENTITLEMENTS FROM 
THE NORTHSIDE EAST COMPONENT AREA OF THE CONSOLIDATED 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOMPENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT (“DRI”) TO LOFTS AT 
CATHEDRAL, LTD.; AUTHORIZING THE DIA CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
TO EXECUTE ANY CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS AND OTHERWISE TAKE 
ALL NECESSARY ACTION IN CONNECTION THEREWITH TO EFFECTUATE 
THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  

 
Guy Parola provided a brief summary of Resolution 2019-08-12.  This is a reauthorization of a 
resolution for a continuance of an allocation over a year ago.  He pointed out the dates were 
changed on Page 2 of the resolution on Sections 4 through 6.  
 
Board Member Padgett disclosed voting conflict because Summit Contracting Group provides  
some work with Vestcor. He filled out Form 8B to file for the record.   
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER WORSHAM AND SECONDED BY 
BOARD MEMBER FROATS APPROVING RESOLUTION 2019-08-12.  

 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 6-0-0.  
 
C.          RESOLUTION 2019-08-13:  JEA HEADQUARTERS ALLOCATION OF 

DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS   
 

RESOLUTION 2019-08-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) 
ALLOCATING UP TO 220,000 SQUARE FEET OF 
GOVERNMENT/INSTITUTIONAL ENTITLEMENTS AND 8,500 SQUARE FEET 
OF COMMERCIAL/RETAIL ENTITLEMENTS FROM THE NORTHSIDE EAST 
COMPONENT AREA OF THE CONSOLIDATED DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 
OF REGIONAL IMPACT (“DRI”) TO RYAN COMPANIES US, INC. FOR USE ON 
DUVAL COUNTY TAX PARCEL 073794 0100 (“PROPERTY”); AUTHORIZING 
THE DIA CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE ANY CONTRACTS AND 
DOCUMENTS AND OTHERWISE TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS 
RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 



Downtown Investment Authority 
Regular Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, August 21, 2019  
Page 3 of 6  

Mr. Parola brought forth Resolution 2019-08-13.  Ryan companies is the developer of the proposed 
JEA headquarters.  He pointed out the mirrored language in the purchase sale agreement on the 
second page of section 4 of the Resolution.    
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MOODY AND SECONDED BY BOARD 
MEMBER GREY APPROVING RESOLUTION 2019-08-13.  
 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 6-0-0.  
 
D. RESOLUTION 2019-08-14:  LIVE BAKERY RETAIL ENHANCEMENT GRANT  

 
RESOLUTION 2019-08:14 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) 
APPROVING A RETAIL ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM FORGIVABLE LOAN IN 
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $69,341.37 FOR THE LIVE BAKERY AND BAR 
(APPLICATION 2016-003); AUTHORIZING THE DIA CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER TO EXECUTE ALL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS AND 
OTHERWISE TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
Guy Parola brought forth Resolution 2019-08-14. He pointed out this item was previously approved 
by the board on December 14, 2016. Due to ongoing work that was needed they did not complete 
the work in time and kept an active permit.  Office of General Counsel advised the DIA to approve 
it again.   
 
Board Member Froats reported that this item was taken up at the Retail Enhancement Committee 
meeting on July 10, 2019.  The committee recommended approval.  Board Member Worsham 
concurred.  
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER PADGETT AND SECONDED BY 
BOARD MEMBER MOODY APPROVING THE RETAIL ENHANCMENT 
COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION FOR LIVE BAKERY RETAIL ENHANCEMENT 
GRANT. 
 
THE MOTION PASSED 6-0-0.  
 
III.  PRESENTATION 
 

A. MOCA 
 
Caitlyn Doherty, Executive Director of MOCA provided a presentation to update the Board on what 
that they are doing at MOCA.  
 
 



Downtown Investment Authority 
Regular Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, August 21, 2019 
Page 4 of 6 

IV. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT

CEO Boyer provided updates on the below items: 
• Project Sharp.
• Blue Cross Blue Shield Parking Garage term sheet was approved at the 8.7.19 meeting and

legislation was filed today.
• Amendment to the Ventures easement on the Southbank.
• The completion of the Southbank budget reconciliation report.
• The completion and submission of the Northbank.
• The Budget hearings before City Council for Approval of the DIA’s and Community

Redevelopment Tax Increment Districts.

CEO Boyer also provided highlights from the Chamber’s Destination Downtown trip she attedend 
on July 31st – August 2nd 2019 to Buffalo New York.  

V. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

NONE

VI. DDRB BRIEFING

Mr. Parola reported the next DDRB Meeting is going to be held Thursday, September 19, 2019 at 
2:00 p.m. in the Ed Ball Building 8th Floor, Board Room.  Vice Chairman Gibbs inquired about Jim 
Klement’s replacement.  CEO Boyer and Mr. Parola conducted some interviews about a week ago 
and two more will be interviewed next Tuesday.  

CEO Boyer interviewed three (3) candidates for the communications coordinator position and will 
be connecting with human resources afterwards to receive their assessment of the individuals. 

IX. OLD BUSINESS

NONE

X. NEW BUSINESS

A. Unsolicited Offers to purchase DIA policy – CEO Boyer suggested having a Strategic
Implementation Committee meeting to iron out the questions to pose recommendation back
to the board between now and the September meeting to prepare to adopt and understand the
process to follow going forward.

She provided copies of Threshold Questions, Draft of the Formal Disposition Procedures and Draft 
of Unsolicited to the board to review.   

The Strategic Implementation Committee will make a recommendation to the board or could have 
the CEO make a recommendation to the board.   



Downtown Investment Authority 
Regular Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, August 21, 2019  
Page 5 of 6  

B. Blackwater Capital, LLC:  Unsolicited Offer to Purchase: LaVilla Property  
 
CEO Boyer recommended rejecting  or holding them until the next meeting to decide what process 
to follow to be fair for everyone who comes along.  
 
CEO Boyer met with Vestcor this morning to discuss other plans the board preferred in terms of 
architectural style and retail component.  She also met with JTA last week regarding some plans 
that came through DDRB ten-set review for bus lanes on Forsyth Street to ensure adequate traffic 
flow off the interstate ramp.   
 
CEO Boyer is in hopes to have the RDA on the LaVilla project at the September meeting.  
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MOODY AND SECONDED BY BOARD 
MEMBER GREY TO TABLE BLACKWATER CAPITAL, LLC UNSOLICTED OFFER 
UNTIL THE SEPTEMBER MEETING TO WORK OUT PROCEDURAL ISSUES.   
 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 6-0-0. 
 
CEO Boyer provided a table that Tom Daly had maintained based on CBRE Quarterly reports.  A 
copy of a presentation a glimpse at Performance was provided to the members.  
 
Jake Gordon, DVI CEO provided a  copy of the 2018 State of Downtown report to the Board. 
CEO Boyer pointed out that the report indicates our targets  in the CRA plan and how we are doing 
in relation to the target on the chart.    
 

C. ELECTION OF OFFICERS  
 
Vice Chairman Gibbs reported that the Governance Committee met August 19th at 1:00 p.m. The 
committee made nominations and he asked if there were any other nominations.  
 
Craig Gibbs, as Chairman, Ron Moody as Vice Chairman and Braxton Gillam as Secretary.   
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER GREY AND SECONDED BY BOARD 
MEMBER FROATS APPROVING THE SLATE OF OFFICERS, CRAIG GIBBS AS 
CHAIRMAN, RON MOODY AS VICE CHAIRMAN AND BRAXTON GILLAM AS 
SECRETARY. 
 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 6-0-0.  
 
XI.      ADJOURN 
 
There being no further business, Vice Chairman Gibbs adjourned the CRA meeting at 
approximately 2:55 p.m.  
 



Downtown Investment Authority 
Regular Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, August 21, 2019  
Page 6 of 6  

The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed.  For verbatim 
comments of this meeting, a transcript is available upon request.  Please contact Karen 

Underwood-Eiland, at (904) 255-5302,or by email at karenu@coj.net. 



RESOLUTION 2019-08-12 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) 

ALLOCATING UP TO 140 UNITS OF MULTI-FAMILY ENTITLEMENTS 

FROM THE NORTHSIDE EAST COMPONENT AREA OF THE 

CONSOLIDATED DOWNTOWN DEVELOMPENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT 

(“DRI”) TO LOFTS AT CATHEDRAL, LTD.; AUTHORIZING THE DIA CHIEF 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE ANY CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS 

AND OTHERWISE TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION IN CONNECTION 

THEREWITH TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2014-0560-E, DIA is the “Master Developer” with 

respect to the Consolidated Downtown Development of Regional Impact (“DRI”) Development 

Order; and 

WHEREAS, Lofts at Cathedral, Ltd., proposes to construct up to 140 multi-family units 

(“Development”) in the Cathedral Neighborhood of Downtown, within the Northside East 

Component Area of the Consolidated Downtown DRI; and 

WHEREAS, the Development is predicated on an award of Community Development 

Block Grant Disaster Recovery funding from the Florida Housing Finance Corporation; and 

WHEREAS, an award of Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery 

funding will not be made until January 2020; and 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the DIA to allocate up to 140 multi-family units of 

entitlements from the Northside East Component area of the DRI, predicated upon an award of 

Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery funding; and 

WHEREAS, upon an award of Community Development Block Grant Disaster 

Recovery funding, the DIA’s Chief Executive Officer will determine, by availability of 

unencumbered multi-family entitlements, which phase or phases to effectuate the allocation, 

NOW THEREFORE 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority 

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference.   

Section 2. The DIA finds that this Resolution 2019-08-12 is consistent with and in 

furtherance of the North Bank Downtown and Southside Community Redevelopment Area Plans 

adopted as part of the Business Investment and Development Plan, and in particular 



RESOLUTION 2019-08-12 

PAGE 2 OF 3 
 

 

Redevelopment Goal 2, which reads: Increase rental and owner-occupied housing downtown, 

targeting key demographic groups seeking a more urban lifestyle. 

Section 3. The DIA allocates up to 140 multi-family units of development rights 

(a/k/a entitlements) to Lofts at Cathedral, Ltd., for use on Duval County Tax Parcel 073617 

0010. Upon confirmation of an award of Community Development Block Grant Disaster 

Recovery funds, the DIA Chief Executive Officer will effectuate the allocation of up to 140 

multi-family units of Phase I entitlements; in the event that there are insufficient Phase I 

entitlements at that time, any necessary entitlements will be allocated from Phase II; in the event 

that there are insufficient Phase II entitlements at that time, any necessary entitlements will be 

allocated from Phase III.  An allocation of Phase II or Phase III entitlements are in accordance 

with Future Land Use Element Policy 2.3.10 adopted as part of the 2030 Comprehensive Plan. 

Future Land Use Element Policy 2.3.10: The Downtown DRI shall maintain adopted Levels of 

Service in the 2030 Comprehensive Plan for all public facilities (drainage, sanitary sewer, solid 

waste, potable water, recreation, and when applicable, schools) reviewed under concurrency, 

except for transportation facilities, which shall be governed by the Consolidated Downtown DRI 

Development Order through Phase I, and the Mobility Plan for development authorized for 

Phases II and III of the DRI. 

Section 4. In the event that Lofts at Cathedral, Ltd., or their assigns, fails to receive a 

Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery award on or by January 30, 2020, this 

Resolution 2019-08-12 and the allocation of entitlements shall become null and void without any 

further action by the DIA. The DIA Chief Executive Officer may grant a 30 day extension at 

their sole discretion.  

 

Section 5. Should Lofts at Cathedral, Ltd., or their assigns, fail to obtain a permit for 

vertical construction within 12 months from a Community Development Block Grant Disaster 

Recovery award, this Resolution 2019-08-12 and the allocation of entitlements shall become null 

and void without any further action by the DIA. The DIA Chief Executive Officer may grant a 

60 day extension at their sole discretion. 

 

Section 6. Should Lofts at Cathedral, Ltd., or their assigns, fail to commence 

construction within 6 months of the issuance of a permit for vertical construction this Resolution 

2019-08-12 and the allocation of entitlements shall become null and void without any further 

action by the DIA. The DIA Chief Executive Officer may grant a 60 day extension at their sole 

discretion. 

 

Section 7. Lofts at Cathedral, Ltd., may assign the allocation of entitlements upon 

approval by the DIA Chief Executive Officer, who shall not unduly withhold such approval.   

 

 Section 8. The DIA Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute any contracts 

and documents and otherwise take all necessary action in connection therewith to effectuate the 

purposes of this resolution. 



RESOLUTION 2019-08-12 

PAGE 3 OF 3 
 

 

Section 9. This Resolution, 2019-08-12, shall become effective on the date it is 

signed by the Chair of the DIA Board. 

 

 

 

WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________            

James Bailey, Chairman   Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 

 

 



RESOLUTION 2019-08-13 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) 

ALLOCATING UP TO 220,000 SQUARE FEET OF 

GOVERNMENT/INSTITUTIONAL ENTITLEMENTS AND 8,500 SQUARE 

FEET OF COMMERCIAL/RETAIL ENTITLEMENTS FROM THE 

NORTHSIDE EAST COMPONENT AREA OF THE CONSOLIDATED 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOMPENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT (“DRI”) TO RYAN 

COMPANIES US, INC. FOR USE ON DUVAL COUNTY TAX PARCEL 073794 

0100 (“PROPERTY”); AUTHORIZING THE DIA CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

OFFICER TO EXECUTE ANY CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS AND 

OTHERWISE TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION IN CONNECTION 

THEREWITH TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2014-0560-E, DIA is the “Master Developer” with 

respect to the Consolidated Downtown Development of Regional Impact (“DRI”) Development 

Order; and 

WHEREAS, Ryan Company US, Inc., on behalf of JEA, seeks to construct a 220,000 

square foot office building and a structured parking facility with 8,500 square feet of ground 

floor retail; and  

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority, as the Community Redevelopment 

Agency for Downtown, issued a Notice of Disposition for the City-owned Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority, after the required notice period and in 

accordance with Florida Statutes and the Jacksonville Ordinance Code governing the disposition 

of property within a Community Redevelopment Area, voted to sell Ryan Companies US, Inc. 

the Property, NOW THEREFORE 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority 

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference.   

Section 2. The DIA finds that this Resolution 2019-08-13 is consistent with and in 

furtherance of the North Bank Downtown and Southside Community Redevelopment Area Plans 

adopted as part of the Business Investment and Development Plan, and in particular 

Redevelopment Goal 1, which reads “Reinforce Downtown as the City’s unique epicenter for 

business, history, culture, education, and entertainment.” 



RESOLUTION 2019-08-13 

PAGE 2 OF 2 
 

 

Section 3. The DIA allocates up to 220,000 square feet of Government/Institutional 

and 8,500 square feet of Commercial/Retail units of entitlements to Ryan Companies US, Inc., 

for use on Duval County Tax Parcel 073794 0100. 

Section 4. In the event that Ryan Companies US, Inc., fails to commence 

construction and have entered into a binding lease agreement with JEA on or by December 31, 

2020, this Resolution 2019-08-13 and the allocation entitlements authorized herein shall become 

null and void without any further action by the Downtown Investment Authority. 

 

Section 5. This Resolution, 2019-08-13, shall become effective on the date it is 

signed by the Chair of the DIA Board. 

 

 

 

WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________            

James Bailey, Chairman   Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 

 

 



RESOLUTION 2019-08-14 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) 

APPROVING A RETAIL ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM FORGIVABLE LOAN 

IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $69,341.37 FOR THE LIVE BAKERY AND 

BAR (APPLICATION 2016-003); AUTHORIZING THE DIA CHIEF 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE ALL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS 

AND OTHERWISE TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION IN CONNECTION 

THEREWITH TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS, via Ordinance 2014-0389 City Council approved the creation of a 

Downtown Retail Enhancement Program (“Program”), appropriated $750,000 in funding from 

the Downtown Economic Development Fund for the Program and authorized the DIA’s Chief 

Executive Officer to execute grant (i.e. forgivable loan) agreements; and  

WHEREAS, the Program was reaffirmed via Ordinance 2014-0560, which approved a 

Business Investment and Development Strategy, Northbank Community Redevelopment Area 

Plan and Southbank Community Redevelopment Area plan (collectively the “Business 

Investment and Development Plan”); and 

WHEREAS, at the July 10, 2019 meeting of the DIA Retail Enhancement Program 

Committee they approved Application 2016-003; and 

WHEREAS, Application 2016-003 was previously approved for funding both by the 

Retail Enhancement Program Committee on December 7, 2016, and by the DIA Board on 

December 14, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, due to prolonged construction owing to the rehabilitation of the building, 

the completion time frames within the Program were exceeded; and 

WHEREAS, in an abundance of caution to ensure adherence to Program guidelines, the 

DIA Board desires to approve the forgivable loan via adoption of this Resolution 2019-08-14, 

NOW THEREFORE 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority 

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference.   

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



RESOLUTION 2019-08-14 

PAGE 2 OF 2 
 

 

Section 2. The DIA finds that this Resolution 2019-08-14 is consistent with and in 

furtherance of the North Bank Downtown and Southside Community Redevelopment Area Plans 

adopted as part of the Business Investment and Development Plan, and in particular 

Redevelopment Goal 1, which reads “Reinforce Downtown as the City’s unique epicenter for 

business, history, culture, education, and entertainment.” 

Section 3. The DIA approves a forgivable loan in an amount equal to the lesser of 

$69,341.37 or fifty percent (50%) of the actual eligible paid construction costs. 

 Section 4. The DIA Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute any contracts 

and documents and otherwise take all necessary action in connection therewith to effectuate the 

purposes of this resolution. 

 

Section 5. This Resolution, 2019-08-14, shall become effective on the date it is 

signed by the Chair of the DIA Board. 

 

 

 

WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________            

James Bailey, Chairman   Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 

 

 



gparola
Typewritten Text
SUPPORT DOCUMENTS: RESOLUTION 2019-08-14



























































































































ADDITIONAL HANDOUTS



MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU



 
       
       

     

Our mission: 
To promote the discovery, knowledge, and advancement 
of the ART, ARTISTS, and IDEAS of our time. 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  
Image courtesy of Thomas Hager. 

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


   

 

 

 

  

About moca 

• Cultural Institute of the 

University of North 

Florida 

• Non Profit 501(c)3 

• Founded in 1924 as the 

Jacksonville Fine Arts 

Society 

• 60,000 square feet in the 

Urban Core 
MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


 

    

 

 

The moca difference 

• MOCA originates more than 95% of its exhibitions 

• Focus on contemporary art, 1960 to the present 

• Downtown location 

• Nationally recognized education programs 

• Project Atrium series 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  
Image courtesy of Thomas Hager. 

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


     

 

  

 
   

 
 

 

FY19 (July 1, 2018–June 30, 2019) 

• 35790 visitors 

• 9094 served through 
education and public programs 

• 1534 Title 1 elementary 
students 

• General museum admission 
was free to 64% of visitors 

• Of the remaining, more than 
50% were sold to tourists 

visiting from outside the region 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


exhibitions 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


 PUBLIC PROGRAMS 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


Education 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


 
  

 

  

   

MOCA/unf: a bridge between 
campus & community 

• Classes held Downtown 

• UNF Student Ambassadors 

• UNF Guilds at Artwalk 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


 
  

 

 

MOCA/unf: a bridge between 
campus & community 

• Pop Up Exhibitions 

• UNF Events 

• Downtown Presence 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


  

 
  

   
 
 

  
  

LOBBY REVISONING Project 

• Create a welcoming, vibrant 
and financially sustainable 
resource which which is a 
driver for the revitalization 
of Downtown Jacksonville 
and reinforces awareness of 
MOCA and its mission in our 
community. 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


  

 

 

LOBBY REVISONING Project 

PROCESS: 

• Stakeholder input 

• Collated data 

• Working group 

• 2 Phases 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


   

 

 

 
 

 
  

MOCA LOBBY: Phase 1 

• ART FOCUSED 

• Exhibition space 

• Display of collection in 
MOCA Café 

• Project Atrium 

• Pop up areas 

• Contemporary design 
aesthetic using local 
artisans and vendors 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


   

 

 

 
 

 

MOCA LOBBY: Phase 1 

• Visitor Focused 

• Welcoming reception 

• Clear wayfaring and 
information 

• Draw people inside 
with clear brand 
messaging 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


   

 

 

MOCA LOBBY: Phase 1 

• Visitor Focused 

• Flexibility with clear space designation 

• Outdoor café seating and shades and indoor lounge 
furniture 

• Opening hours 

• MOCA merchandise 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


   

 

 

 

 

MOCA LOBBY: Phase 1 

• MOCA Café 

• Fast casual/counter service 

• Reduced menu with favorite 
food and beverage items 

• Great coffee and full bar 
service 

• Breakfast – Happy Hour! 

• Dine in or ‘grab and go’ 

• Children’s menu 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


   

 

 
 

 

 
 

MOCA LOBBY: Phase 1 

• MOCA Catering 

• Delivery service within the 
Downtown area for groups of 
6 or more 

• New catering and events team 

• Full service outside licensed 
catering 

• Facility rental as one of 
Downtown’s premier event 
venues 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


    

   

   

 

 

  
 

MOCA Café & Catering: impact 

• Downtown Destination and Revitalization 

• Annual Gross Revenue – $325,000 

• $150,000 Café / Delivery 

• $175,000 Events / Catering 

• $220,000 approximate annual contribution to local 
economy through salaries 

• MOCA Café and Catering Personnel 

• 3 Full-time positions 

• 13 Part-time/seasonal positions 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


 thank 
you 

MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU  

http:MOCAJACKSONVILLE.UNF.EDU


MOCAJACKSONVILLE .UNF .EDU



• I 

BLACKWATER CAPITAL, LLC 

VIA HAND DELIVERY 

August 7, 2019 

Ms. Lori Boyer. CEO 
Downtown Investment Authority 
117 W. Duval St., Suite 310 
Jacksonville, FL 32202 

Re: Proposal to Purchase City-Owned Property at 200 N. Lee St. (074896-0000) ( .. Property") 

Dear DIA: 

The purpose of this letter is to indicate the basis upon which Blackwater Capital, LLC ("Blackwater''), is 
prepared to acquire free and clear title to that certain Property, as more particularly described above and 
on Exhibit A attached hereto, in Duval County, Florida from the City of Jacksonville ("City"). 

This letter is a letter of intent ("LOI") only~ it is not legally binding on either party, notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary elsewhere in this letter. However, this letter is an indication of good faith intent 
between the parties to be detailed in a future contractual agreement if the parties agree. 

Assignment and Assumption of Lease: The City shall assign to Blackwater, and Blackwater shall 
assume the role of Lessor, to that certain Lease Agreement for Redevelopment of Land, as amended, and 
recorded on November 21. 1997, in Official Records Book 8783, Pages 182-275, of the public records of 
Duval County, Florida. 

Proiect: Upon expiration of the Lease, Blackwater proposes to redevelop the Property as a mixed-use 
project to (a) compliment the proposed townhomes adjacent to the Property, and (b) further support the 
goals of both the North Bank Community Redevelopment Area Plan and the LaVilla Neighborhood 
Development Strategic Plan. 

Purchase Price: The purchase price shall be THREE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND AND 00/ 100 
DOLLARS ($350,000.00) to acquire free and clear title to the Property. 

Deposit: Upon execution of the Contract, Blackwater shall deliver a refundable deposit of THIRTY 
FIVE THOUSAND AND 00/1 00 DOLLARS ($35,000.00) (·'Deposit") with a mutually agreed upon 
escrow agent ("Escrow Agent") and shall be applied to the Purchase Price at Closing. 

Inspection Period: Commencing upon the effective date of the LOI and continuing for ninety (90) days 
after the effective date of the Contract, Blackwater shall have the right to review title, survey, easements, 
entitlements, environmental reports, civil engineering plans. utility availability plans, master stonnwater 
retention plans; and to physically inspect the Property ("Inspection Period"), during which time the City, 
DIA and Lessee shall fully cooperate with Blackwater and shall provide Blackwater with complete access 
to the Property and all related Property records. 

Termination: If, for any reason whatsoever, at any time prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period, 
Blackwater elects not to proceed with the transaction, Blackwater shall have the right to terminate the 

3966 O RTE <.i .\ Hl.\' D • _I \ C l<S O N \ ' 11.1.E . 1: 1.o lUD \ • 32210 

http:35,000.00
http:350,000.00


Blackw:llLr Capttal 
200 N. I.cc St. LOI 
,\u1-,rust 7, 2019 

Contract, whereupon the Deposit shall be returned to Blackwater, and the Contract shall be null and void, 
and the parties shall have no further obligation or recourse against each other. 

Closing: This transaction will close ("Closing") on a date mutually agreeable to Blackwater and the City 
no later than ten ( 10) days after the expiration of the Inspection Period. 

Closing Costs: The C losing Costs shall be allotted per local custom. 

Brokerage Commission: Blackwater and the City acknowledge that there are no brokers or agents 
involved in this transaction. 

This offer, when accepted, will constitute the agreement between the parties to negotiate in good faith 
toward the signing of the Contract consistent with the terms of this LOI. 

Sincerely, 

·~ 

William A. Stanly, Ill 
Managing Member 



• 

Blackwater Capital 
200 N. Lcr.: St I.OJ 
i\ugust 7,2019 

Exhibit A 

Entire Block bound by Monroe Street, Lee Street, Adams Street and 1-95 



BLACKWATER CAPITAL, LLC 

VIA HAND DELIVERY 

August 7, 2019 

Ms. Lori Boyer, CEO 
Downtown Investment Authority 
117 W. Duval St., Suite 310 
Jacksonville, FL 32202 

Re: Proposal to Purchase City-Owned Property at OW. Forsyth St. (074836-0000), 0 W. Bay St. 
(074837-0000), 1015 W. Bay St. (074838-0000), 1017 W. Bay St. (074839-0000), and OW. 
Bay St. (074840-0000) ("Property") 

Dear DIA: 

The purpose of this letter is to indicate the basis upon which Blackwater Capital, LLC ("Blackwater"), is 
prepared to acquire free and clear title to that certain Property, as more particularly described above and 
on Exhibit A attached hereto, in Duval County. Florida from the City of Jacksonville (''City"). 

This letter is a letter of intent ("LOI") only; it is not legally binding on either party, notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary elsewhere in this letter. However, this letter is an indication of good faith intent 
between the parties to be detailed in a future contractual agreement if the parties agree. 

Proicct: Blackwater proposes to redevelop the Property as a mixed-use project to (a) compliment the 
proposed townhomes adjacent to the Property. and (b) further support the goals of both the North Bank 
Community Redevelopment Area Plan and the LaVilla Neighborhood Development Strategic Plan. 

Purchase Price: The purchase price shall be ONE HUNDRED TWENTY FIVE THOUSAND AND 
00/100 DOLLARS ($125,000.00) to acquire free and clear title to the Property. 

Deposit: Upon execution of the Contract, Blackwater shall deliver a refundable deposit of TWELVE 
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($12,500.00) (""Deposit") with a mutually 
agreed upon escrow agent ("Escrow Agent'') and shall be applied to the Purchase Price at Closing. 

Inspection Period: Commencing upon the effective date of the LOI and continuing for ninety (90) days 
after the effective date of the Contract, Blackwater shall have the right to review title, survey, easements, 
entitlements, environmental reports, civil engineering plans, utility availability plans, master stormwater 
retention plans; and to physically inspect the Property ("Inspection Period"), during which time the City 
and DIA shall fully cooperate with Blackwater and shall provide Blackwater with complete access to the 
Property and all related Property records. 

Termination: If, for any reason whatsoever, at any time prior to the expiration of the Inspection Period, 
Blackwater elects not to proceed with the transaction, Blackwater shall have the right to terminate the 
Contract, whereupon the Deposit shall be returned to Blackwater, and the Contract shall be null and void, 
and the parties shall have no further obligation or recourse against each other. 

3%6 ORTE ( i .\ Hl.\' D • _I .\ C K~ON\' 11.L E . FLORID .\ • 32210 

http:K~ON\'11.LE
http:12,500.00
http:125,000.00


Bbckwatcr Capital 
l.a\'1lla Block 3C LOI 
,\ugust 7, 2019 

Closing: This transaction will close ("Closing") on a date mutually agreeable to Blackwater and the City 
no later than ten ( I 0) days after the DIA and City have granted to Blackwater all entitlements and 
approvals necessary to construct the Project. 

Closing Costs: The Closing Costs shall be allotted per local custom. 

Brokerage Commission: Blackwater and the City acknowledge that there are no brokers or agents 
involved in this transaction. 

This offer, when accepted, will constitute the agreement between the parties to negotiate in good faith 
toward the signing of the Contract consistent with the tenns of this LOI. 

Sincerely, 

William A. Stanly, Ill 
Managing Member 



Blackwater Cap1t:1l 
I.a Villa Block 3C I.OI 
August 7, 2019 

Exhibit A 

Entire Block bound by Forsyth Street, Lee Street, Bay Street and Johnson Street 


	RESOLUTION 2019-08-11_ NB ALL YEARS BUDGET.pdf
	Revised Northbank all years budget revision 2019.pdf
	All Years Budget


	Support Documents for Resolution 2019-08-14.pdf
	Structure Bookmarks




